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HMSC STUDENT HOUSING DESIGN BUILD 
PROJECT NUMBER: 1967-17 

 
RFP #2023-009726 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
ISSUE DATE:  October 5, 2022 

 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR:  

Brooke Davison, Construction Contract Officer 
Construction Contracts Administration 

Email: ConstructionContracts@oregonstate.edu  

 
This Addendum is hereby issued to inform you of the following revisions and or clarifications to the above‐
referenced RFP and/or the Contract Documents for the Project, to the extent they have been modified herein. Any 
conflict or inconsistency between this Addendum and the Solicitation Document or any previous addenda will be 
resolved in favor of this Addendum.  Proposals shall conform to this Addendum. Unless specifically changed by this 
Addendum, all other requirements, terms and conditions of the Solicitation Document and or Contract Documents, 
and any previous addenda, remain unchanged and can be modified only in writing by OSU.  The following changes 
are hereby made:  
 
MODIFICATIONS:  
Item 1 Section 7.8.7, Design Phase Fee Proposal – Remove last sentence of the first paragraph in its entirety.   
 
REFERENCE/SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS:  
Item 2 The HMSC Student Housing Geotechnical Due Diligence Report, dated March 21, 2016 from Foundation 

Engineering, Inc is attached for Reference Only. 
 
Item 3 The Purchase and Sale Agreement between Landwaves, Inc. and OSU, dated 9/13/2016 is attached for 

Reference Only.   
 
CLARIFICATIONS: 
Item 4 The budget as stated in Section 1.6 of the RFP is the entire project budget.   

 

QUESTIONS: 
Item 5  Q: Please elaborate on the intent of the design fee calculation formula. 
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A:  OSU will use the formula stated in 7.8.7 of the RFP for both the Design Phase Fee Proposal and the 
Design Builder Fee Proposal.  Having a standard formula eliminates bias in the evaluation of the fee 
proposals.  The evaluation of the fees will be quantitative, not qualitative. 
 

Item 6 Q:  Please confirm that the requested references are only for the General Contractor part of the team 
and not combined references inclusive of the design team. In the proposal meeting this was confirmed 
to be the case. 

  A: Confirmed 
 
Item 7 Q: Has OSU completed a traffic study for the housing project? Or can it be confirmed that it was already 

covered in the master planning? 
A: No traffic study found.  Design Builder to verify.  It is not anticipated that the development of this 
property would trigger roadway improvements.  The Project will need to meet City parking 
requirements.     

 
Item 8 Q:  Are there any off-site or frontage improvements expected to be included in this project? 

A: Design Builder to submit their design to the City for approval.  Frontage improvements may be 
required.   

 
Item 9 Q:  It appears some off-site work has been completed with utility stub outs.  Can you provide the as-built 

information?  
A: OSU did not install these utilities, contact the City of Newport or Franchise Utility companies for as-
builts. 

 
Item 10 Q:  Does OSU have a site survey with topography, or is the DB team expected to include survey in the 

proposal? If it exists, can this be shared in pdf and cad? 
A: Yes, pdf and cad files of the existing site can be shared, however OSU assumes no responsibility in the 
accuracy of the information. Design Builder shall do their own due diligence to verify site conditions.  

 
Item 11 Q:  Will geotechnical engineering be contracted separately by OSU or included in the DB proposal? If it 

exists, can this be shared?   
A: OSU will contract geotechnical engineering separately.  The existing Geotechnical Report is attached 
to this Addendum, see Item 1 above.   

 
Item 12 Q:  It appears the site has municipal water and sewer service. Please confirm the HMSC Housing project 

is expecting to connect to these utilities. 
 A: Yes, the expectation is to connect to City utilities. 

 
Item 13 Q:  LEED standards are mentioned. Is he expectation to pursue the process for LEED Certification or just 

“shadow” the program?   
 A: Design must be LEED Silver as a standard, but LEED certification is not required. 
  

Item 14 Q:  It appears Wilder obtained Community Master Development Plan approval from the City of Newport 
in 2016. Can the application submittal materials (by the applicant) and application notice of decision and 
conditions of approval (by the City) for the application made available as a part of this RFP?  

 A: This information will be shared with Design Builder once awarded.   
 

Item 15 Q:  Was the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendment and Zone Change to support this  project 
approved and currently in effect? If available, can the notice of decision and conditions  of approval be 
made available as a part of this RFP? 
A: Information will be shared with Design Builder once awarded a contract.   
 

Item 16     Q:  Is the project expected to go through a rezoning, public approval, and city council approval? 
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  A: This is not anticipated, however, it depends on final design. 
 

Item 17     Q:  Are there known wetlands, sensitive lands, or critical habitats on the subject site? 
A: Wetlands are known, Design Builder will be responsible for identifying and sensitive lands and 
habitats. 
 

Item 18 Q:  There appears to be a storm retention easement for the property.  Can that agreement and details be 
shared? 
 A: Survey maps will be shared with the Design Builder after contract execution.  The City will require an 
on-site stormwater detention system.    
 

Item 19  Q:  It appears there have been a couple iterations of plans on this site for housing.  Can you please share 
why those plans didn’t move forward specifically if it was related to the site conditions? 
A: Previous attempts of a student housing on this site did not align with OSU’s budget at the time.  
 

Item 20  Q:  Are city system development costs to be included in the overall budget or does the school have any 
special agreements that exempts them from those fees? Same with permit fees. 

  A: All SDC and permit fees are included within the budget stated in the RFP.    
 

Item 21 Q:  Looks like there is a trail system as part of the master plan is there any requirements for this project to 
incorporate those trails? 

  A: Yes, it is a requirement of the City.  
 
Item 22     Q:  Can you provide the Wilder Design Guidelines? 

  A: See Item 2 above.   
 
Item 23  Q:  Is the Corporate Activity Tax expected to be included in the overall budget or is there an exemption 

that be incorporated being a school related project?  
  A:  The Corporate Activity Tax is expected to be included in the Design Build Fee.  OSU does not allow this 

charge to be expressed as a separate amount in addition to the Design Build Fee.   
 
Item 24     Q:  Are the Power district fees expected to be incorporated into the overall budget. 

  A: Yes, all fees and permits are incorporated into the overall total budget.    
 
Item 25     Q:  The city zoning map shows this are a R-2 zoning.  Can you please confirm that is correct? 

  A: Zone Designation for the proposed site is R-3.  Revised in 2016.  
 
Item 26     Q:  Is there any known neighborhood opposition to the project? 

  A: Not that OSU is aware of.  
 

Item 27    Q:  Are there any concerns with existing neighbors in the area? 
  A: Not that OSU is aware of.   

 
Item 28    Q:  Is there any solar moratorium known by the PUD for the area?  

  A: Not to OSU knowledge, however, Design Builder will need to investigate to confirm. 
 
Item 29  Q:  Is the design/builder responsible for material testing and inspections such as concrete and welding or 

does OSU cover that scope?  
  A: OSU will contract separately but funding will come out of total project budget. 

 
Item 30    Q:  Is there an as-built of the fiber that is ran to the curbside.  

  A: Contact City or Franchise Utility company. 
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Item 31    Q:  Are there any known easements or restrictive covenants on the property?  
  A: Yes, Item 2 above. 

 
Item 32  Q:  Is there any other future uses or planned structures that need to be considered on the property? 

A: Potential outdoor structures as identified in the proposal should be considered.  The property is 
intended for student housing, see Item 2 for restricted use. 

 
Item 33    Q:  Can you confirm the flood zone designation and any tsunamic design requirements? 

  A: All proposed student housing on this site shall be outside the tsunami zone.  Design Builder to verify 
flood zone for site and design structures to meet current seismic standards. 

 
Item 34     Q:  Will the project require a builder’s risk policy and if so is that to be included in the budget?  
    A: Yes to both.   
 
Item 35  Q:  Is there a master 1200C permit for the full development in place or is it expected this project is to 

obtain an independent 1200C permit?  
  A:   It is likely separate 1200C will be required for this site.   

 
Item 36     Q: Is there a Phase I or Phase II assessment available for the property? 

  A: Yes  
 
Item 37  Q: Is there any know radon levels/testing or requirements for radon protection in the school guidelines.  

  A: Design Builder must follow all local and state laws. 
 
Item 38    Q:  Have any hydrant pressure tests been performed nearby, or any water pressure concerns? 

  A: No  
 
Item 39    Q:  Have any soil percolation tests been performed for the property or the master plan? 

  A: No  
 
Item 40     Q:  Are there any mass transit requirements or future connection plans for the project? 

  A: Possibly, bus stop maybe required.  This will require coordination with the Design Builder and the City. 
 

Item 41    Q: Is there any FAA requirements or restrictions for the project?  
  A: Possibly, this will require coordination with the Design Builder and the City/FAA. 

 
Item 42    Q:  Will early procurement of long lead items be allowed before permit approval? 

  A: Yes  
 
Item 43  Q:  Please confirm retainage is only for onsite construction and not the overall design or preconstruction 

scope.   
  A:  Confirmed. 
 
Item 44  Q:  If the city or public works approvals are delayed beyond their required timelines, can it be expected 

the schedule be extended the equal amount of time? 
A: Schedule extensions may be approved for delays outside the Design Builder’s control that would 
directly impact Project completion deadline.  However, if the delay(s) is caused by the Design Builder, 
whether it be due to lack of information provided to the city or permitting agency or another reason 
attributed to the Design Builder, a schedule extension will not be approved.  In all cases, OSU expects the 
Design Builder to mitigate delay(s) to the best extent possible within the finalized Project Schedule.       

 
Item 45     Q:  Is the city doing permit review or are they outsourcing? 

  A: Unknown, Design Builder will need to verify with the City. 
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Item 46 Q:  Confirm requirement for attendance at the Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference, exactly who is 

mandatory? 

  A:  A representative of the proposed prime contract holder (the Design Builder) was required to be in 

attendance at the Pre-Proposal Conference.  Design professionals, subcontractors and subconsultants were 

welcome to attend, but were not required to attend.   

 

Item 47   Q:  Is there a targeted move in date for the facility? 
A:  Preliminary schedule has move in date Nov. 2024.  Design Builder shall develop Project schedule 
based on their design and lead time for materials.   

 
Item 48 Q:  How long should be assume for owner review of interim design submissions? Would the Owner 

review and provide formal approval at each stage of the design process? 
 A: It is expected that the Design Builder and team will coordinate and participate in page turns with OSU.  

OSU will need a minimum of 2-weeks for internal review. 
 
Item 49 Q:  Will OSU be the sole reviewer of the design other than Wilder Development?  Are there other 

stakeholders?  Is there a requirement for meetings / outreach, if so what should we assume? 
   A: No additional stakeholders.   
   
Item 50 Q:   For the question 7.8.1, we are assuming that this pertains to the builder and not the 

designer.  Please confirm. 
A:  Not confirmed.  The Firm Background portion refers to the Design Builder and the Experience 
portion may refer to all member of the team. 

 
Item 51    Q:  Can the project schedule be on 11x17 and will this be considered as a single page? 
    A:  Yes, for ONLY the schedule.   
 
Item 52 Q:  We are assuming that the rate escalation after one year (4.5.3 of the sample agreement) will be 

included in the final contract. Please confirm. 
 A:  Not confirmed, this topic may be a negotiation point with Design Builder at the time of Contract 

execution.  In addition, refer to 7.12 of the RFP.   
 
Item 53 Q:  For BIM requirements, is there an LOD level we should plan for?  Is there requirements for tagging 

equipment for O&Ms, etc., Please confirm. 
 A:  BIM requirements will be discussed with the selected Design Builder prior to Contract Execution. 
 
Item 54 Q:  We have assumed no concept or design work will be needed at Step 2 of the RFP.  Please confirm. 
 A:  Confirmed. 
 
Item 55 Q:  The RFP states that “OSU will only accept sealed proposals electronically”. We are assuming proposal 

attached to a standard email is what was intended. 
 A:  Confirmed 
 
Item 56 Q:  Please confirm that the geotechnical and environmental assessment will be done by OSU. 

 A:  An updated Geotechnical Assessment is anticipated and will be contracted for by OSU.  OSU does not 
anticipate contracting for an environmental assessment.   

 

Item 57 Q: In Section 7.8.2  Key Personnel, in addition to the architect, please confirm you are looking for key 
staff from the design consultants (civil, structural, landscape, etc) as well. 

   A:  Confirmed  
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Item 58 Q:  Please confirm you are looking for the full design fee from design through construction 
administration for all design disciplines broken down by phases (SD, DD, CD, permitting, CA) as well as 
hourly rate sheets for all design disciplines. 

 A:  The Design Phase Proposal must include all Design Phase Services and associated Reimbursable 
Expenses, as defined in the Sample Agreement.  As stated in the RFP, include hourly rates for those 
personnel participating in the Design Phase work.  

 
Item 59 Q:  Normally for multifamily projects, MEP design is handled by MEP subcontractors as a hard cost of 

construction on a design build basis after performance specs are agreed upon.  We would expect this 
cost to be part of the Cost of Work, not part of the Design Fee or Builder Fee.  Is that acceptable? 
A:  All Design Phase Services must be included in the Design Phase Proposal required in the RFP.  If the 
design of the MEP systems is performed by subcontractors instead of subconsultants, this is acceptable, 
however, those subcontractors will also need to bid the work pursuant to the Contract.   

 
Item 60 Q:  Section 7.8.8 Design Builder Fee Proposal refers to the Matrix being provided in the RFP as guidance 

in developing the DB fee and clarifying what are costs that are part of the Cost of Work.  The Matrix was 
not included in the sample DB Agreement which references Schedule M.  Please provide the Matrix to 
clarify what are proper Cost of Work items.   

 A:  The Matrix is attached.  Note, all references to CM/GC on the Matrix shall mean Design Builder. 
 
Item 61 Q:  Section 5.14 of the DB agreement requires a pricing amendment before construction documents are 

completed.  This seems to conflict with the RFP documentation.  We will assume that CDs will be 
completed before the pricing amendment is executed.  Is that a good assumption? 

 A:  Traditional Construction Documents may not be complete prior to a Pricing Amendment.  Design 
Builder will need to communicate with OSU and mutually agree to the timing of any given Pricing 
Amendment.   
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Foundation Engineering, Inc. 
Professional Geotechnical Services Memorandum 
 

 

Date: March 21, 2016 

To: Lori Fulton, Manager, Capitol Administration 

Oregon State University,  

From: Bill Nickels, P.E., G.E. 

Brooke Running, C.E.G. 

Subject: Due Diligence Geotechnical Reconnaissance 

Project: HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4 

Project 2161013 

We have completed the requested preliminary geotechnical reconnaissance for the 

above-referenced project in Newport, Oregon.  This memorandum includes a 

description of our work, a discussion of the site conditions, and preliminary 

conclusions regarding the suitability of the site for the proposed student housing.  

BACKGROUND 

Oregon State University (OSU) is planning to construct student housing in the South 

Beach area of Newport.  One property being considered is referenced as Wilder 

Phase 4, and is located south of SE 40th Street, ±1,200 feet east of the intersection 

with US Highway 101.  The site location is shown in Figure 1A (Appendix A).   

Foundation Engineering, Inc. was retained by OSU to complete a preliminary 

geotechnical reconnaissance in support of the due-diligence process prior to purchasing 

the property.  Our scope of work was formally authorized by Retainer Contract 

Supplement No.: OSU-254-P-15-104, dated February 9, 2016. 

SITE RECONNAISSANCE 

Brooke Running of Foundation Engineering met at the site on March 1, 2016, with 

Lori Fulton and Cory Destefano (representing OSU), and Jay Robinson (representing 

the property owner).  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the property limits, 

wetland constraints, equipment access, and the proposed building siting.  When the 

discussion was completed, the representatives left and Ms. Running walked the site 

to observe the wetland area, ponded water and drainage features, topography and 

vegetation.  In addition, she staked the proposed locations of five test pits outside of 

the wetland area. 

Property Boundary Conditions 

The vacant parcel is sited on a west to northwest facing slope at the transition from 

beach plain/marine terrace to western foothills of the Coast Range.  The north and 

east side of the property is bounded by the SE 40th Street right-of-way (ROW).  The 

south property line was not well defined.  However, it appears to traverse across a 

mostly wooded area, immediately north of a residential development.  An abandoned 

power line easement shapes the southern part of the western boundary.  The 
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northern part of the western boundary is defined by a line of trees that extend to SE 

40th Street.  However, a portion of this northern segment has been encroached upon 

by the adjoining property tenants.  The removal of vegetation and site 

grading/disturbance was observed in this area during our site visit.   

Vegetation 

Established Douglas fir trees are scattered across the parcel and create a canopy, 

reducing the amount of underbrush; including salal, ferns, scotch broom, salmon berry, 

brambles, and small hemlock trees.  It appears that the larger, fir trees were thinned 

at some point, leaving stumps and overgrown cat trails.  The ground surface on the 

east side of the wetland is primarily covered with duff, downed and rotting trees and 

branches and moss. 

Wetland 

A 0.05-acre wetland has been identified on the property near the center of the parcel. 

The wetland runs in an approximate north-south direction and drains to the south.  At 

the time of our reconnaissance, the wetland contained slow, running water and plants 

that are typical for wetland areas.  Near the center of the property line defined by the 

abandoned powerline easement, a culvert (marked with a traffic cone) carries the 

water from the wetland area across the easement to the abutting property.  The 

ground surface radiating away from the wetland was saturated and contained some 

small areas of ponded water. 

Site Topography 

The site topography is fairly steep along the east slope and gradually flattens toward 

and within the wetland area and continues to the west.  The high point on the 

property appears to be along the east slope and at the northwest corner.  The low 

point appears to be in the wetland area.   

A few shallow cuts into the sand are apparent along the abandoned powerline 

easement near the southwest property line.  To prevent vehicles from accessing the 

easement, large soil piles, now overgrown with vegetation, were present.  A small 

pond remains where the soil for the piles was excavated. 

FIELD EXPLORATION 

We dug five test pits at the site on March 8, 2016, using a Komatsu PC 170LC 

track-mounted excavator.  At the time of our field work, a detailed topographic plan 

was not available for the site.  Therefore, the surface elevations are not indicated on 

the test pit logs.  The approximate test pit locations were established by pacing from 

area landmarks and are shown on Figure 2A (Appendix A).   

The test pits extended to a maximum depth of ±10.5 feet.  Disturbed soil samples 

were obtained for possible laboratory testing.  Where fine-grained soils were 

encountered, undrained shear strength measurements were completed on the test pit 

side walls using a Torvane shear device.  The soil profiles were logged and levels of 
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ground water infiltration, where it occurred, were noted.  Upon completion of the 

excavation work, the test pits were backfilled with the excavated materials and 

compacted in lifts by tamping with the bucket of the excavator.  The ground surface 

at the test pit locations was graded as smooth as practical.  Each test pit was marked 

with a lath indicating the test pit number for on-site reference and possible future 

survey. 

The soil profiles, sampling depths and strength measurements are summarized on the 

appended test pit logs.  The final logs (Appendix B) were prepared based on a review 

of the field logs and an examination of the soil samples in our office. 

DISCUSSION OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

Subsurface Conditions 

A general description of the soil conditions encountered in the test pits is provided below.  

A more detailed description of the conditions in each test pit is provided in the appended 

logs (Appendix B). 

Duff.  A surficial layer of dark brown, low plasticity organic silt was encountered in 

all the test pits.  The organics consist of pine needles, decomposed leaves and tree 

roots up to ±1 inch in diameter.  The duff material comprises the upper ±6 to 

14 inches of the subsurface profile, and is not suitable for construction.  Therefore, 

site stripping should remove this layer prior to site development. 

Topsoil.  The duff is underlain by brown, low plasticity silt (topsoil) in all of the test 

pits.  Torvane shear tests completed on this material indicates an undrained shear 

strength ranging from ±0.4 to 0.6 tons/ft2 (tsf), corresponding to a medium stiff to 

stiff consistency.  This stratum extends to depths of ±1.6 to 3.2 feet. 

SILT (Marine Terrace Deposits).  A thin layer (±1 to 1.3 feet thick) of grey, low 

plasticity silt with a trace to some sand was present at the surface of the marine 

terrace deposits in TP-2 and TP-3.  Torvane shear tests completed on this material 

indicates an undrained shear strength ranging from ±0.7 to greater than 1 tsf, 

corresponding to a stiff to very stiff consistency.  

SAND (Marine Terrace Deposits).  The topsoil/silt is underlain by predominantly 

medium dense sand with trace silt grading with depth to dense sand.  This stratum 

extends to depths of ±7 to 10.5 feet, the limits of the explorations.  At TP-4, a lens 

of dense sandy gravel in a silt matrix was encountered from ±10 to 10.5 feet.  At 

TP-5, a layer of soft silt with some thin sand lenses was encountered from ±6 to 

7 feet.   

Ground Water.  Ground water seepage was encountered in TP-4 and TP-5 at depths 

ranging from ±4 to 6 feet.  The rate of infiltration was observed to be slow to 

moderate.  Additionally, iron-staining was observed in the marine terrace deposit 

stratum.  Based on the observed iron-staining and ground water conditions 

encountered during the exploration, we expect that a perched ground water condition 

develops during the typical rainy season extending from mid-October to late June.   
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LABORATORY TESTING 

Laboratory testing for this reconnaissance-level work included moisture contents 

(ASTM D2216) and Atterberg limits tests (ASTM D4318) on selected samples to help 

classify and estimate the engineering properties of the on-site soils.  Results of the 

classification tests are summarized in Table 1B (Appendix B).  The remaining soil 

samples obtained during this work will be retained for possible future laboratory testing.   

DISCUSSION OF POTENTIAL GEOTECHNICAL CONCERNS 

Our work included a review of available geologic and hazard maps and reports, historic 

aerial photos, local water well logs, previously completed geotechnical investigations for 

nearby projects, and an examination of the soil samples retained during our exploration.  

Our findings concerning potential geotechnical hazards are discussed below. 

Erosion 

No evidence of active surface erosion was observed on the existing slopes.  If the 

slopes remain vegetated, significant erosion should not be a concern.   

Expansive Soil  

The soils encountered in our explorations consisted of predominantly low plasticity silt 

with a trace to some sand.  Silt soils of low plasticity typically have a low potential 

to shrink and swell with changes in moisture.  Therefore, the hazards associated with 

expansive soils at this site are low. 

Seismic Related Hazards 

Potential seismic hazards that were addressed during our literature review and field 

work include:  

 Ground Motion Amplification.  The existing subsurface data for this site, and 

for adjacent sites indicates relatively shallow bedrock (siltstone of the Nye 

Mudstone) is present across the street from the site.  Therefore, the 

amplification factor defined as the ratio of the PGA at the ground surface to the 

PGA on-rock is expected to be less than 1.2, rendering the amplification hazard 

as low.   

 Liquefaction.  The liquefaction hazard is considered low due the apparent 

relative density of the sand and the absence of a static water table. 

 Earthquake-Induced Landslides.  This hazard is considered low since there are 

no mapped, historic landsides at the site that may have been caused by previous 

seismic activity.  In addition, there are no recently identified landslides or 

surface features that would suggest slope instability. 
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 Earthquake-Induced Instability of Engineered Fills.  Man-made fills supporting 

structures or other infrastructure are engineered to remain stable during an 

earthquake.  Therefore, the risk of instability should be low if the fills are 

constructed in accordance with appropriate geotechnical guidelines for material 

type, placement and compaction. 

 Tsunami Inundation.  The wet/dry line for local source tsunami inundation and 

the maximum tsunami wave elevation scenario for a Cascadia Subduction Zone 

(CSZ), megathrust earthquake is at the base of the hill slope ±200 feet west 

of the westernmost point of the site on SE 40th Street.   

Distant source tsunami inundation for an Alaskan earthquake is well to the north 

and west of the property.  This scenario is predicted to inundate the beach and 

bay area only.   

A more detailed seismic hazard review and analysis will be completed, as required to 

fulfill the requirements of a site-specific seismic hazard study as defined in the current 

Oregon Structural Specialty Code (OSSC).  

DISCUSSION OF GEOTECHNICAL ISSUES 

Site Grading 

A site grading plan was not available at the time this study was completed.  In general, 

the on-site sand is suitable for reuse as site fill, provided the earthwork is completed 

during dry weather when aeration and moisture-conditioning are feasible.  The 

organic-rich topsoil and underlying silt will not be suitable for reuse and should be 

disposed of outside of construction areas or hauled from the site. 

Foundations 

Based on the observed soil conditions, the proposed housing can be supported on 

conventional shallow foundations (i.e., spread footings and/or thickened edge-slabs).  

The footings may be supported on a layer of imported crushed rock underlain by stiff silt 

or medium dense sand. 

Pavement Construction 

With proper moisture conditioning, the low plasticity soils can be compacted and serve 

as a suitable subgrade for new pavements.  However, these soils are expected to soften 

with exposure to rainfall.  Therefore, dry weather construction is recommended.   

FEASIBILITY OF THE SITE FOR THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

Based on our site reconnaissance, a review of the available information, and our field 

exploration, we have concluded there are no fatal flaws that would preclude construction 

of the proposed housing complex.  In addition, conventional foundation design and 

construction, and mass grading methods are appropriate.   
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ADDITIONAL GEOTECHNICAL WORK 

If OSU moves forward with purchasing the property, a detailed geotechnical 

investigation will be required for this site.  We anticipate the investigation will include 

the following main tasks: 

1. Deeper explorations (possibly borings) to confirm the assumption that the site is 

underlain by relatively shallow bedrock and to provide a deeper soil profile for 

seismic design.  

2. Detailed recommendations for site preparation and for the design and 

construction of shallow foundations, retaining walls (if required) and pavements.   

3. A site-specific seismic hazard study to meet current Oregon Structural Specialty 

Code (OSSC) requirements. 

VARIATION OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS, USE OF INFORMATION AND WARRANTY  

The conclusions and findings contained herein are based on the assumption that the 

subsurface conditions and the ground water observed in the exploratory test pits are 

representative of the overall subsurface conditions.  This site assessment is intended 

for planning purposes only and not for final design.  It is assumed that Foundation 

Engineering will prepare a final geotechnical report containing recommendations for 

site development and for foundation design and construction, and be present during 

construction to confirm the assumed foundation conditions.  We will assume no 

responsibility or liability for any engineering judgment, inspection or testing performed 

by others. 

This report was prepared for the exclusive use of Oregon State University and their 

consultants for the HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4 project in Newport, 

Oregon.  Information contained herein should not be used for other sites or for 

unanticipated construction without our written consent.  This report is intended for 

planning purposes.  Contractors using this information to estimate construction 

quantities, means and methods, or costs do so at their own risk.  Our services do not 

include any survey or assessment of potential surface contamination or contamination 

of the soil or ground water by hazardous or toxic materials.  We assume that those 

services, if needed, have been completed by others. 

Our work was done in accordance with generally accepted soil and foundation 

engineering practices.  No other warranty, expressed or implied, is made. 
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Appendix B 
Test Pit Logs and Laboratory
Test Results 
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S-1-1

S-1-2

S-1-3

Soft organic SILT (OL); dark brown, wet, low plasticity, organics
consist of pine needles, leaves, and roots up to ±1 inch in
diameter, (duff).
Stiff SILT (ML); brown, wet, low plasticity, (topsoil).

Dense SAND (SP); grey and iron-stained, moist, fine sand,
(marine terrace deposits).

BOTTOM OF TEST PIT

0.60

No seepage or ground water
encountered to the limit of excavation.

Newport, Oregon

Surface Elevation:

Date of Test Pit:

Project No.:

 N.A. (Approx.) HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4

March 8, 2016

2161013 Test Pit Log:  TP-1
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S-2-1

S-2-2

S-2-3

S-2-4

Soft organic SILT (OL); dark brown, wet, low plasticity, organics
consist of pine needles, leaves, and roots up to ±1 inch in
diameter, (duff).
Stiff SILT (ML); brown, moist, low plasticity, (topsoil).

Stiff to very stiff SILT, trace to some sand (ML); grey, moist, low
plasticity, fine sand, (marine terrace deposits).

Medium dense SAND, trace silt (SP); grey and iron-stained, wet,
fine sand, (marine terrace deposits).

Dense SAND (SP); grey and iron-stained, wet, fine sand, (marine
terrace deposits).

BOTTOM OF TEST PIT

0.60

>1.0

No seepage or ground water
encountered to the limit of excavation.

Newport, Oregon

Surface Elevation:

Date of Test Pit:

Project No.:

 N.A. (Approx.) HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4

March 8, 2016

2161013 Test Pit Log:  TP-2
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S-3-1

S-3-2

S-3-3

Soft organic SILT (OL); dark brown, wet, low plasticity, organics
consist of pine needles, leaves, and roots up to ±1 inch in
diameter, (duff).
Medium stiff SILT (ML); brown, moist, low plasticity, (topsoil).

Stiff SILT, trace to some sand (ML); grey, moist, low plasticity,
fine sand, (marine terrace deposits).
Dense SAND (SP); grey and iron-stained, moist, fine sand,
(marine terrace deposits).

BOTTOM OF TEST PIT

0.40

0.70

No seepage or ground water
encountered to the limit of excavation.

Newport, Oregon

Surface Elevation:

Date of Test Pit:

Project No.:

 N.A. (Approx.) HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4

March 8, 2016

2161013 Test Pit Log:  TP-3
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Soil and Rock Description
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S-4-1

S-4-2

S-4-3

S-4-4

Soft organic SILT (OL); dark brown, wet, low plasticity, organics
consist of pine needles, leaves, and roots up to ±1 inch in
diameter, (duff).
Medium stiff SILT (ML); brown, moist, low plasticity, (topsoil).

Medium dense SAND, trace silt (SP); grey and iron-stained, wet,
fine sand, (marine terrace deposits).
Scattered silt lenses below ±4 feet.

Dense silty sandy GRAVEL (GM); grey and manganese and
iron-stained, moist, low plasticity silt, fine sand, fine to coarse
gravel, subrounded to rounded gravel, (marine terrace deposits).
BOTTOM OF TEST PIT

0.40

Moderate seepage at ±6 feet.

Newport, Oregon

Surface Elevation:

Date of Test Pit:

Project No.:

 N.A. (Approx.) HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4

March 8, 2016

2161013 Test Pit Log:  TP-4

Comments
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Soil and Rock Description
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S-5-1

S-5-2

S-5-3

S-5-4

Soft organic SILT (OL); dark brown, wet, low plasticity, organics
consist of pine needles, leaves, and roots up to ±1 inch in
diameter, (duff).
Medium stiff SILT (ML); brown, wet, low plasticity, (topsoil).
Medium dense SAND, trace silt (SP); grey and iron-stained, wet,
fine sand, (marine terrace deposits).

Soft SILT, some sand lenses (ML); brown, wet, low plasticity, fine
sand, thin lenses, (marine terrace deposits).
Dense SAND (SP); grey and iron-stained, moist, fine sand,
(marine terrace deposits).

BOTTOM OF TEST PIT

Slow seepage at ±4 feet.

Newport, Oregon

Surface Elevation:

Date of Test Pit:

Project No.:

 N.A. (Approx.) HMSC Student Housing Wilder Phase 4

March 8, 2016

2161013 Test Pit Log:  TP-5
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Project 2161013 

 

 

Table 1B.  Natural Water Contents and Atterberg Limits 
 

Sample 

Number 

Sample 

Depth (ft) 

Natural Water 

Content 

(percent) 

 

LL 

 

PL 

 

PI 

USCS  

Classification 

S-1-1 0.5 – 1.0 60.1     

S-1-2 1.5 – 2.5 75.2     

S-2-1 1.5 – 2.5 71.1     

S-2-2 3.5 – 4.5 50.6 48 42 6 ML 

S-3-1 1.0 – 2.0 64.2     

S-3-2 3.0 – 3.5 47.5 58 48 10 MH 

S-4-1 0.0 – 0.8 104.5     

S-4-2 1.5 – 2.5 68.6     

S-5-1 0.5 – 1.5 40.3     

S-5-3 6.0 – 7.0 67.0     

 









































Project Name:

CMGC  Fee _______%

CMGC Preconstruction Fee $ Lump Sum

CMGC General Conditions 

Monthly Charge $ Per Month

CMGC General Conditions Duration # of Months

CMGC Fee Precon Fee General Conditions Direct Cost of Work Owner

1

CM/GC Project Manager and 

all on-site CM/GC personnel 

based upon OSU approved 

CM/GC organization chart and 

percentage of time that each 

person is dedicated to the 

Project.  On-Site personnel 

may include construction 

manager, superintendents, 

project/field engineers, 

coordinator, scheduler, cost 

estimator, safety, quality 

control, adminstrator, Project 

accountant, and other Project 

specific personnel deemed 

necessary for the Project and 

approved by OSU

X

2

Costs related to transportation 

(including trucks, shuttles, 

parking, corporate vehicles 

and their operation and 

maintenance, owned or 

rented) for all staffing in Item 

1.  Does not include 

commuting to and from 

Project site.

X

3
Standard Compensation 

Bonuses
X

4

CM/GC home (or main), 

branch and/or regional office 

general, administrative and 

support staff who provide 

corporate management 

oversight, corporate 

accounting, corporate safety, 

corporate quality control, 

corporate administration, 

corporate IT, legal services, 

corporate payroll and benefits 

accounting/administration.

X

5 CM/GC Profit on all Work X

6
Office/Trailer Rental, 

Furnishings, and Cleaning
X

7 Copy/Fax/Printer & Supplies X

8
PPE Safety Equipment, Fire 

Ext & First Aid
X

9 Fire Watch X

10 Temporary Toilets X

11 Water/Ice/Cups X

12 Temporary Stairs/Scaffolding X

13

Temporary 

Enclosures/Weather 

Protection
X

14 Temporary Building Heating X

15 Project Signs & Bulletin Boards X

16 Temporary Fencing X

17 Covered Walkways X

Cost Matrix

Cost Responsibility Matrix for CMGC

Subject to CMGC Fee Mark Up

Construction Staff (For Project Specific Time)

Costs for the staff listed below must include fringe benefit (including vacation, health care, etc.), communication device, computer, tablet, project specific software, vehicle, gas, prof. develop., workers comp insurance, payroll taxes and any other misc. cost 

associated with labor.  DOES NOT include standard compensation bonus.

Temporary Facililies



CMGC Fee Precon Fee General Conditions Direct Cost of Work Owner

18 Barricades X

19 Profit and Overhead X

20 Builder's Risk Insurance X - No Mark up

21 General Liability X
22 Excess Liability Coverage X

23 Performance & Payment Bonds X - No Mark up

24

Subcontractor 

Bonds/Subcontractor Default 

Insurance
X - No Mark up

25 Job Site Utility Set up X

26 Job Site Utility Consumption X

27
Document Management 

Programs
X

28 Safety/Ceremony Lunches X

29 Construction Progress Photos X

30 Off-Site Storage X

31 Housekeeping & Final Clean X

32 Trash & Recycling X

33 Dust Controls/Street Cleaning X

34 Snow and Ice Removal X

35 Dewatering Equipment X

36 Temporary Roads (if required) X

37 Radio equipment X

38 On Site Storage X

39
Lifts (Rented or Contractor 

owned)
X

40 Lift Operators X

41
Fuel, Repairs, Maintenance for 

Lifts
X

42 Small Tools Purchase X

43 Small Equipment Rental X

44 Crane and Hoisting X

45 Temporary Elevator Rental X

46 Elevator Operator X

47
Reproduction and Printing 

during construction
X

48

Craft Parking when paking lot 

is not already provided by 

Owner
X - No Mark up

49 PIPC Permit X

50 General Building Permit X

51 Craft Permits X - No Mark up

52 Surveying X

Reproduction and Printing

Permits and Special Fees

On-Site Equipment and Utilities

Overhead, Fee, Insurance and Bonds
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